
CITY OF CORVALLIS 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD AGENDA 

7:30 pm, Wednesday, November 2, 2016 
Board Room 

 

I. Community Comments 
Opportunity for public input on matters of interest to the Library Advisory Board. 
 

II. October 5, 2016 Minutes Review 
 

III. Library Advisory Board Packet Questions & Comments 
 

IV. Annual Report of the Library Advisory Board 
 

V. Director’s Report 
 

VI. Division Manager Reports 
 

VII. Board Reports 
 Friends of the Library Board 
 Foundation Board 
 

VIII. Information Sharing 
 

IX. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call 541.766.6928 (for TTY services, 
dial 7-1-1). Notification at least two business days prior to the meeting will enable the City to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting.  (In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, 28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title I and ORS 192.630(5)). 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES 
October 5, 2016 

 
Board Present 

 

Katherine Bremser, Chair 
Jennifer Alexander 
Mike Beilstein 
Karen Clevering 
Eric Dickey  
Paula Krane 
Cheryl Maze  
Anne Schuster 
Steve Stephenson, Vice-Chair 
 
Absent/Excused: 
Diane Cygan 
Scott Elmshaeuser  
Jacque Schreck 
 

Staff Present 
 

Carolyn Rawles, Library Director 
Andrew Cherbas, Deputy Director 
Rachel Denue, Senior Administrative Specialist 
Shaun Hearn, Circulation Supervisor 
Mary Nevin, Extensions Supervisor 
Felicia Uhden, Deputy Director 
 
 
 
 
Visitors:  Mark Shepard 
 

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 
 

Agenda Item Information Only Action 

Call to Order 7:30 pm  

Community Comments X  

Mark Shepard – Discuss Library Director 
Recruitment 

X  

Brainstorming Questions for Library 
Director Candidates 

X  

Minutes:  September 7, 2016  Approved. 

Library Advisory Board Packet X  

Old Business:  Review Circulation Policy 
                   Discuss Children’s Fines 

 Approved. 

Director’s Report X  

Division Manager Reports X  

Board Reports 
Friends of the Library Board 
Foundation Board 

 
X 
X 

 

Information Sharing X  

Adjournment 8:54 pm  
 

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair, Katherine Bremser at 7:30 pm.  Went around the room with 
introductions. 
 

II. COMMUNITY COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 
 
 



Library Advisory Board 
October 5, 2016 

Page 2 of 5 

 

III. LIBRARY DIRECTOR RECRUITMENT – MARK SHEPARD 
 
Mark Shepard thanked the Board for inviting him to the meeting.  He wants to make it clear that they 
are replacing and are actively recruiting for the Library Director position.  The application deadline was 
October 3.  They have screened the applicants and there are 11 people they will be conducting Skype 
interviews with.  Assuming they will have a pool of four or five candidates after the Skype interviews, 
they will set up in-person interviews and a public Meet and Greet.  There will be several interview 
panels.  Hopefully there will be good candidates to move forward with.  He stated that sometimes it 
takes two rounds of job searching, but he’s not afraid to go back out if we don’t get a candidate he feels 
is a good fit. 
 
Steve Stephenson stated that he believes a number of the Board members are going to be on the 
interview panels.  Carolyn Rawles being here for 18 years will be a tough act to follow and he knows 
she has served the Library and the community very well.  Mark asked the Board what they feel or if they 
have ideas for the process of recruitment.  Eric Dickey replied that his observation is that he really likes 
how Carolyn values the staff and their input on decision making, etc.  Steve added that it has been a 
collaborative sort of style, the staff is used to having a Director who is involved.  He feels that the 
Library is a group of creative, hardworking staff right now and what he feels they need is someone who 
can lead the staff.  He feels the person needs to have fiscal knowledge as well.  Paula Krane stated she 
feels that we need someone who is qualified as a Librarian; someone who knows Corvallis and 
understands that it is a highly educated community; someone who is well read and that can work with 
patrons and communicate on several levels; someone who can speak well and communicate their 
ideas to the public and to staff.  Besides leading the Library, they have to sell the Library to the 
community and the City Council.   
 
Karen Clevering stated that there are many situations with mental illness issues, we want to make sure 
the person appreciates the Library, how it is changing, how different people are using the Library for 
different reasons, and to keep that in mind to keep it community friendly.  Mike stated that there has to 
be awareness that the Library does more than provide resources, it is a safe and welcoming place for 
the community.  Knowing those challenges and how you creatively address them to make everyone 
safe and comfortable in the space is important.  Mark stated that he thinks it will be interesting to see if 
any of the candidates will know what is happening with the Strategic Plan.  Steve added that it is 
important to him that we have someone familiar with rural service, as we deal with meeting the needs of 
patrons in rural areas.  Cheryl Maze stated that the Vision is very important, looking forward to libraries 
and what will become of us.  She feels the person needs to be the leader of the staff and needs to see 
the big picture.  Katherine stated that in terms of the Vision, they need to have an understanding of the 
importance of it and standing back and letting staff be creative and supporting them.  They need to 
understand that our libraries are here for everybody.  We are going to have facility challenges in the 
next few years; we are hearing from staff we need bigger and more flexible facilities here and in 
Philomath as well.  Steve stated that is a good example for leadership challenges, Philomath is run by 
the City, but has to work with the Library as well.  We need someone who can understand that and 
lead, but lead from behind when needed.  Communication with Boards is important as well, with the 
knowledge of what’s going on and with timely communication among all Boards.  Anne added that 
appreciating all three Boards is very important, they are active and they bring a lot to the Library, 
volunteers, funding, etc.  Anne added that partnerships are critical and important as well.  Jennifer 
Alexander added innovation is important, knowing what is going on with the future of libraries and being 
connected professionally.  Eric stated that he agrees, knowing the demographics of the City and the 
County and it would be interesting to see if any of the candidates will know how our demographics will 
be estimated to change.   
 
Jennifer asked if part of the in-person interviews will be the candidates presenting a scenario or 
exercise.  Mark replied that no, they will just be giving a brief presentation at the Meet and Greet of who 
they are and why they are a good candidate.   
 



Library Advisory Board 
October 5, 2016 

Page 3 of 5 

 

Steve stated that it’s important to have knowledge of public libraries, because they are different than 
other libraries.  Katherine stated that, in history, this Library has been influential in being involved with 
professional organizations.  Steve asked what the City’s commitment is to professional development.  
Mark responded that there has been significant paring back in that investment, and there will be 
continuing financial issues for the City.  He values investing in our current employees, it’s about having 
the right people in the right place, engaged and empowered.  It has to be balanced with fiscal realities, 
but if we don’t invest in our people, we will lose them and service levels will drop, etc.  Continued 
investment is important.  Steve agreed that professional development at all levels is very important and 
does a lot for efficiency, moral and creativity.   
 
Mark stated that he can almost guarantee that they will not find anyone that has experience with three 
rural branches, etc.  Experience is important, but traits and characteristics are very important as well.  
They can successfully grow into this job, so he is hopeful the candidates will show very well.  He has 
high standards for them to reach.  He is looking for several of the things that have been mentioned:  
leadership, being able to identify with issues, inspire and empower staff, fiscally creative, a good 
communicator, someone that this isn’t just a job for, but a passion.  Anne added that she would like to 
know what the candidates’ favorite books are or the most recent book they have read. 
 
Mark stated that if this round of candidates and interviews are successful, they will be looking at early 
next year for a start date. 
 
Eric mentioned that serving as a Board member for this Library is probably one of the most rewarding 
things he does.  
  
Paula added that the Library Board has had City Liaisons for many years and she feels that they are 
very important to the functioning of the Boards.  Mark replied that there was a wide range of discussion 
on this subject, yes it was on the table to eliminate the liaisons, but nothing was decided, and he feels 
that there will be further discussion on that in the future.   
 
Katherine asked if everyone got enough from this discussion.  Cheryl stated that if anyone thinks of 
anything else, please email Cheryl and Karen, as they will be on the interview board.   
 

IV. BRAINSTORMING QUESTIONS FOR LIBRARY DIRECTOR CANDIDATES 
 
See above. 
 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Motion:  Steve Stephenson moved to approve the September 7, 2016 meeting minutes.  Seconded 
by Cheryl Maze and the motion carried.  
 

VI. LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD PACKET QUESTIONS & COMMENTS  
 
Steve stated that he liked the article in the packet about the importance of libraries.   
 
Anne stated that at the last meeting the Board talked about the consultant the County is using.  It didn’t 
work out for him to attend this meeting, as he wants to have 45 minutes.  Do we want to include that in 
future meetings or make a separate meeting for just that topic?  It was decided to discuss this and 
decide what to do at the next meeting. 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
REVIEW CIRCULATION POLICY 
Carolyn stated that in the packet was the updated Circulation Policy and the main changes are in the 
appendix.  Those changes include to have the loan period on all items three weeks, to eliminate fines 



Library Advisory Board 
October 5, 2016 

Page 4 of 5 

 

on children’s and young adult materials and adding the new things like the Lucky Day Collection and 
the STEAM kits.  Felicia Uhden noticed that the date on Appendix A is incorrect, so that will be one 
more change. 
 
Steve asked what the Library staff’s recommendations are on these matters.  Carolyn replied that they 
feel that these changes are good and needed.  She heard discussion of families not checking things out 
due to fines.  It wouldn’t have a huge financial impact on the Library and she feels it would be helpful for 
the community and use of the children’s collection.  Patrons will still be responsible for the items.  Mike 
stated that he can see the value of eliminating fines, but how will that change usage, will people tend to 
change their habits.  Carolyn replied that other libraries do this now and it hasn’t changed the rate of 
returning items.  She believes we will hear from the public that we are not teaching responsibility, etc.  
Steve replied that they still have to be responsible, just in a different way.  Even if we lose some books, 
it’s important to serve the entire community.  Mike stated that he feels this is an appropriate thing to do 
and glad to hear there has been discussion.  Paula asked if someone can still be blocked.  Carolyn 
replied, that yes, they will still get blocked.   
 
Steve moved to accept the staff’s recommendations on changes on the Circulation Policy.  Seconded 
by Karen and motion passes. 
 
Carolyn added that this still has to be approved by the City Manager. 
 
DISCUSS CHILDREN’S MATERIAL FINES 
See above. 
 

VIII. DIRECTOR’S REPORT  
 
Carolyn reported that the Strategic Plan was approved by the City Council.  The plan is on the Library’s 
website with a message that it was approved and there will be an article in the next Check it Out! 
newsletter.   
 
Carolyn recommended the Board have a way to keep track of the plan and where we are with it.  Karen 
asked if there should be a schedule to do that.  Jennifer recommended reviewing things quarterly.  
Katherine added that she would like to have brief discussion in December and then come back with an 
official review in January. 
 
Carolyn stated that Heather Maisel is the new Supervising Librarian and will be starting in January.  
 
Carolyn reported that management has been participating in some training.  Anne asked if there are 
any other safety trainings other than the Great Shakeout.  Carolyn replied that the Library also practices 
fire drills.  Eric stated that LBCC did active shooter drills.  Carolyn added that the Library has covered 
that subject at In-Service days as well.  This year, In-Service is going to be on mental health issues.   
 
We have figured out with the reorganization of the Library, that we may have enough money to have at 
least one casual Security Guard. 
 
Carolyn thanked the Board for the cake at the potluck earlier. 
 

IX. DIVISION MANAGER REPORTS 
 

 Extension Services:  Andrew Cherbas reported that in addition to the Great Oregon Shakeout on 
10/20/16, they are closing the public computers for the entire day for updating.   
 
They are starting the book box deliveries next week to the schools.   
 



Library Advisory Board 
October 5, 2016 

Page 5 of 5 

 

They are in the beginning stages of planning the winter reading program.  Mary Nevin, Ashley Folgate 
and Elizabeth Johnson will be in charge of that.  They will be starting to plan for summer reading as 
well. 
 
Mary stated that branches are in full swing of their Fall programs and everything has been going well. 
 
 Technical Services:  Felicia reported that software upgrades have been something she has been 
working on this month.  Baker & Taylor software is being updated and seems to be going smoothly so 
far.   
 
Later this month she will be attending the TLCU Conference in Tempe, Arizona.  They too are 
contemplating changes to our cataloging and serials modules. 
 
 Circulation:  Shaun Hearn reported that new recruits are doing well and have already been sent out 
to the Beaver Fair. 
 
They have updated the Library’s security cameras to a better system with more cameras that cover 
more areas.  The old system was failing and needed to be updated.  Jennifer asked if the cameras are 
used for real time or just past time.  Shaun replied that it is mainly for the past, as we don’t have 
someone that sits and watches them daily.   
 
Steve asked how long everyone will be out of the building after evacuating for the Great Shakeout.  
Shaun replied that it’s five or ten minutes max to sweep and clear the building and shut the alarms off. 
 

X. BOARD REPORTS 
 
Friends of the Library – Carolyn reported that FOL had a very successful Fall Festival Book Sale, the 
best they’ve had so far. 
 
Library Foundation – Steve reported that they will be meeting in November. 
 

XI. INFORMATION SHARING 
 
Paula thanked Carolyn for putting the article of her son in the Board packet. 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next meeting will be on November 2, 2016 at 7:30 pm.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:54 pm. 











http://www.gazettetimes.com/news/local/carolyn-rawles-library-director-set-to-
retire/article_90cfbe35-8710-56cd-b74f-bab48180b865.html

TOP STORY

Carolyn Rawles: Library director set to retire 
JAMES DAY Corvallis Gazette-Times Updated Oct 25, 2016

Expand

Anibal Ortiz photos, Corvallis Gazette-Times
Carolyn Rawles, library director at the Corvallis-Benton County Public Library, is shown Monday in her office. Rawles
her 34-year career as a library administrator in Corvallis. 

Page 1 of 8Carolyn Rawles: Library director set to retire | Local | gazettetimes.com

10/28/2016http://www.gazettetimes.com/news/local/carolyn-rawles-library-director-set-to-retire/artic...



Carolyn Rawles says she has been going to libraries “pretty much every day since I was 

17 years old. It was hard to keep me away.”

Rawles, who got her start working at a Sacramento, California, library when she was in 

high school and who has been in library administration for 34 years, is retiring Nov. 1 

after more than 18 years as director of the Corvallis-Benton County Public Library.

“It’s been a very satisfying career,” she said Monday. “I’m sad, actually. I really liked 

being a librarian. I have the best job in the city. I love what I do. It was hard for me to 

pick a major in college but after working in high school at a library I realized it was the 

right job for me. I mean, I read the whole encyclopedia.”

The library business has changed dramatically since Rawles got involved 

professionally after getting her master’s in library science at Indiana University. 

Computers. Electronic databases. Ebooks. The decline of bookstores.

“Automating the library and getting library circulation systems on line was a huge 

task,” Rawles said. “And it took longer for it to happen at smaller libraries.”

In the early days of the changeover, computers were all behind the counter and 

customers had to request online searches in a manner not unlike the way card 

catalogs were used by students doing research for term papers. But as the computer 

industry matured, higher speeds and lower costs came, and computers moved out 

into the middle of the library.

Also in the days before the internet, library personnel would take phone calls from 

people looking to resolve bar bets. Now, they can look up the population of Corvallis 

in 1910 on their smartphones. (The answer: 4,552.)

Another issue that has ebbed and flowed has been the patrons challenging library 

materials as inappropriate. Some years, Rawles said, challenges came in at the rate of 

one a month. This year there have only been one or two.

Page 2 of 8Carolyn Rawles: Library director set to retire | Local | gazettetimes.com

10/28/2016http://www.gazettetimes.com/news/local/carolyn-rawles-library-director-set-to-retire/artic...



“Whether an item is appropriate for children is the most common complaint and that 

makes sense,” Rawles said. Movies produce a surprising number of the complaints, 

Rawles said.

Rawles said the library never has taken out an item because of complaints, but they 

have moved materials around, say from a youth section to an adult section.

“I’m glad that people express their views,” Rawles said. “That’s what we’re all about.”

Libraries often have been key players in battles over access to information. Rawles 

recalled that when the Patriot Act passed after the Sept. 11 terrorist attacks in 2001, 

librarians were in the front lines, resisting government efforts to gather information 

on people based on items that they checked out at the library.

“Certain things haven’t changed at all,” Rawles said. “It’s all about access to 

information and a service orientation.”

And it’s also all about kids … and their parents..

“One of the most important things we do is playing a role in the educational process 

for youth,” Rawles said. “We do work with at-risk youths, we have an early literacy 

coordinator who works with parents and we offer lifelong learning for adults.

“We have three programs a day countywide for kids. There is always something for 

them to do here. And we like to say that when you go to the library it’s the one place 

you can take your kids in which they won’t bug you about buying something. You can 

take books home for free.”

Running the main Corvallis library plus the Bookmobile and branches in Philomath, 

Alsea and Monroe is a complex task, aided by the joint city-county funding 

arrangement, Rawles said. She has 58 employees (approximately 43 FTEs) and more 

than 200 volunteers. Adding support is the Friends of the Library, which works on 

online book-selling, library book sales, special events and equipment.

Page 3 of 8Carolyn Rawles: Library director set to retire | Local | gazettetimes.com

10/28/2016http://www.gazettetimes.com/news/local/carolyn-rawles-library-director-set-to-retire/artic...



The library’s foundation, meanwhile, works on fundraising for long-term projects, 

including the Complete the Block campaign, which raised more than $600,000 to 

purchase the law office that occupies the lone parcel of land on the block not 

occupied by the library itself.

“That is one of our greatest accomplishments since I’ve been here,” Rawles said. “It 

was a one-time opportunity and it gives the flexibility to expand in the future.”

A building consultant will be studying the matter in the new few months. There are 

two likely options:

• One would be to move administrative and office functions into the law building, 

opening up more space in the library.

• A second option involves demolishing the law building and adding on to the library.

Option two would be far more costly, said Rawles, who said that a bond measure 

likely would be required to move forward.

“It’s time for someone new to bring some new energy and fresh perspectives,” Rawles 

said. “We’ve hired a lot of younger librarians lately. They are so smart and so creative. 

It’s so neat that they are interested in a library career.”

Rawles, meanwhile, plans to use her retirement to do a lot of traveling. In recent years 

she has traveled to India, Chile, Australia and Morocco, and she is planning another 

trip to India as well as a visit to Mexico.

The urge to travel coincides with her reading interests, which she said tend toward 

travel books and other nonfiction books about “different cultures and different 

places.”

Page 4 of 8Carolyn Rawles: Library director set to retire | Local | gazettetimes.com

10/28/2016http://www.gazettetimes.com/news/local/carolyn-rawles-library-director-set-to-retire/artic...



Jim Day (EMP)

Currently on her nightstand are “The Last Jews of Kerala,” by Edna Fernandes, a book 

about the Jewish experience in India, and “The New Confessions of an Economic 

Hitman,” the second volume by John Perkins about his experiences working on 

economic development in foreign countries.

“It was time,” she said of her retirement. “I’ve been wanting to travel more, and I 

wanted more flexibility with my schedule. But I won’t stop coming to the library. It’s 

hard to keep me away.”

Contact reporter James Day at jim.day@gazettetimes.com or 541-758-9542. Follow at 
Twitter.com/jameshday or gazettetimes.com/blogs/jim-day.

CAROLYN RAWLES
Age: 61

Position: Retiring as Corvallis-Benton County Library director effective Nov. 1.

Previous stops: library director and assistant library director in two towns in Indiana; library 
director in Douglas County, Nevada

Hometown: Sacramento

Residence: Corvallis

Education: bachelor’s in history/political science from Gonzaga University; master’s in library 
science at Indiana University

Family: divorced, daughter is a junior at Gonzaga

Hobbies: travel, gardening, hiking

Currents 

Photos: Indians beat Cubs in first game of World Series 
 +25

Page 5 of 8Carolyn Rawles: Library director set to retire | Local | gazettetimes.com

10/28/2016http://www.gazettetimes.com/news/local/carolyn-rawles-library-director-set-to-retire/artic...



 

 
 
Rawles says she plans to do a lot of international 
travel once she retires. Two Corvallis men have 
been charged with assaulting a transi… 

 
 

 
 
Carolyn Rawles, library director at the Corvallis-
Benton County Public Library, finishes her 18-
year tenure Nov. 1.  



Page 1 of 2 
 

  

 

January 17, 2016 
 
Members: Katherine Bremser (county), Chair; Steve Stephenson (county), Vice-Chair; Jennifer 
Alexander (city); Karen Clevering (city); Diane Cygan (city); Eric Dickey (county); Scott Elmshaeuser 
(county); Paula Krane (city); Cheryl Maze (city); Jacque Schreck (county); Anne Schuster (County 
Commissioner liaison); high school student, vacant (county).  
 

 
 

 

Purpose/Mission summary   

Section 1.16.220 - Library Advisory Board. 
1) 

A Corvallis Benton County Library Advisory Board is hereby created. 
2) 

The Advisory Board shall consist of ten voting members. Five shall be appointed by the Mayor. 
The Benton County Board of Commissioners shall appoint six members to the Advisory Board, 
one of which shall be a non-voting liaison high school student from Benton County. 

3) 
The Advisory Board shall advise Council on all matters pertaining to the operation, expansion, 
and level of service provided by the Library. In addition, the Advisory Board shall have all of the 
powers and duties authorized by State and City laws. 

4) 
This Chapter shall not be construed to prevent those members of the Advisory Board appointed by 
the Board of Commissioners of Benton County, Oregon, from acting simultaneously as the 
County Library Board under State law. 

5) 
The Advisory Board shall advise the City Council on all matters related to allocating annual 
Library Improvement Reserve funds. 

( Ord. 2015-11 § 2, 06/15/2015; Ord. 2014-16 § 6, 11/17/2014; Ord. 2011-08 § 1, 04/18/2011; Ord. 
2009-12 § 2, 10/19/2009; Ord. 81-99 § 56, 1981) 

 
 
Prior Year Report: 
Activities and work completed: 
 
Activities and work in progress: 
 
Next Year Proposed Work Plan: 
Regular activities and work (ongoing or annual): 
 
Special activities and work for the year: 

Staff: Library Director: TBD Council Liaison: 2016 Mike Beilstein 

 

Annual Report of the Library Advisory Board 



 
Resources: 
Prior Year:  
 
Needed for the next year: 
 
Feedback about the Annual Report Process: 
   




	Library Board 2016.11.02 Packet
	Agenda 11.02.16
	Library Board 2016.10.05
	doc20161028161948
	Carolyn 1
	Carolyn 2
	Advisory Board-Commission Annual Report 2016

	doc20161028163925

